

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of **Templemore Credit Union Limited will be held on Tuesday** 10th December 2024 at 7.30 pm at the McAuley Centre.





# HYBRID OR ELECTRIC AUTO LOANS

Need a car loan? With Templemore Credit Union you own the car from day one with no balloon payments required. **Contact us today to find out more!** 





\* When purchased from garage

# AVAILABLE NOW

Go mobile Today. Manage your money 'On-The-Go'

# And the second of the second o





To download our mobile app, scan the QR code or search for 'Templemore Credit Union' in the App Store or Google Play Store.

If you do not meet the repayments on your loan, your account will go into arrears. This may affect your credit rating which may limit your ability to access credit in the future. Templemore Credit Union Limited is regulated by the Central Bank of Ireland.





Same day decision

Supporting local community

Free Loan Insurance (subject to T&C's)

Personal friendly service

Advanced payments accepted with no cost (reducing your interest)

Tailored repayments available

# Auto Ioan examples

New Loan Sought - 7.9%	€25,000
Repayments Instalments	€505.72 monthly
Repayment Type	Swift (Inclusive of Interest)
Term of Repayments	60 months
Total Amount Repayable*	€30,337.55
Cost of Loan	€5,337.55
APR	8.19%

New Loan Sought - 8.5%	€25,000
Repayments Instalments	€512.92 monthly
Repayment Type	Swift (Inclusive of Interest)
Term of Repayments	60 months
Total Amount Repayable*	€30,768.90
Cost of Loan	€5,768.90
APR	8.84%

Please contact the office for further information.









Contents	Page
Credit Union Invocation	4
Notice of Elections	5
Order of Business	6
Standing Orders	7
CEO Report	8-9
Directors Report	10
Statement of Directors' Responsibilities	11
Statement of Board Oversight Committee's Responsibilities	11
Independent Auditors' Report	12-13
Income & Expenditure Account	14
Balance Sheet	15
Statement of Changes in Retained Earnings	16
Cash Flow Statement	17
Notes to the Accounts	
Schedules to the Accounts	32-33
Report of the Board Oversight Committee	34
Report of the Credit Committee	35
Report of the Credit Control Committee	36
Report of the Membership Committee	37
Report of the Nomination Committee	38
Member Services	39-40

# **Credit Union Invocation**

Lord

make me an instrument of thy peace, where there is hatred let me SHow love, where there is injury, pardon, where there is doubt, faith, where there is despair, hope, where there is darkness, light, and where there is sadness, joy.

O Divine Master
grant that I may not so much seek
to be consoled as to console,
to be understood as to understand,
to be loved as to love,
for it is in giving that we receive,
it is in pardoning that we are pardoned,
and it is in dying that we are born to eternal life.

# **Notice of Elections**

Elections will be held to fill the following vacancies.

2 vacancies on the Board of Directors

1 vacancy on the Board Oversight Committee

**The Position of Auditor** 



# Motion 1. Establishment of a Community Fund

### **Community Fund**

In accordance with Section 44 of the Credit Union Act, 1997 (as amended), this Annual General Meeting approves the establishment of a community fund to be used by the credit union for social, cultural or charitable purposes (including community development), and thereafter the Board may provide, in line with Section 44 of the Credit Union Act, 1997 (as amended), a maximum annual contribution of up to 0.5% of total assets from the surplus funds at year-end to the community fund.

The purpose of the community fund is to support projects within the common bond of Templemore Credit Union for social, environmental, cultural or charitable purposes (including community development). Such projects must be located within our common bond and should reflect the ethos values of Templemore Credit Union and the Credit Union movement.

# **Order of Business**

- 1. Acceptance of proxies (if any) by the Board of Directors.
- 2. Ascertaining that a quorum is present.
- 3. Adoption of Standing Orders.
- 4. Reading and approval (or correction) of minutes of last AGM.
- 5. CEO Report
- 6. Report of the Board of Directors.
- 7. Consideration of accounts.
- 8. Report of the Auditor.
- 9. Report of the Board Oversight Committee.
- 10. Declaration of Dividend and rebate of interest (if any).
- 11. Report of the Credit Committee.
- 12. Report of the Credit Control Committee.
- 13. Report of the Membership Committee.
- 14. Report of the Advertising Committee.
- 15. Report of the Nominating Committee.
- 16. Appointment of Tellers.
- 17. Amendments to Standard Rules.
- 18. Election of Auditor.
- 19. Election to fill vacancy on the Board Oversight Committee.
- 20. Election to fill vacancies on the Board of Directors.
- 21. Any other business.
- 22. Announcement of election results.
- 23. Adjournment or close of meeting.

# **Standing orders**

### 1. Voting

1. Each member shall be entitled to one vote irrespective of his / her shareholding, in accordance with section 82(2) of the Credit Union Act, 1997 (as amended).

### 2. Election Procedure

Elections to the Board of Directors, to the Board Oversight Committee and the position of Auditor shall be by majority vote and by secret ballot.

### 3. Motions

As such there will be no motions from the floor members will be welcome to submit questions to the board in advance of the AGM and the Board will address these, in so far as possible, during the meeting. These questions will be included in the minutes of the AGM.

### 5-10 Miscellaneous

- 5. The Chairperson of the credit union shall be the Chairperson of any general meeting, except where he/she is not available, in which case it shall be the Vice-Chair, except where he/she is not available, in which case the Board shall decide amongst themselves who shall act as Chair of any meeting.
- The Chairperson may at his/her discretion, extend the privilege of the floor to any person who is not a member.
- Matters not covered by the Agenda may be introduced under 'Other business' at the discretion of the Chairperson.
- 8. The Chairperson's decision on any matter relating to these standing orders or interpretation of same will be final.
- 9. In accordance with Section 82(2) no member shall have more than one vote on each question at any general meeting of the credit union or any adjournment thereof, irrespective of his/her shareholding or the number of accounts in his/her name in the credit union, provided however, that except in voting at elections, the presiding member shall have a second or casting vote in the event of equality of voting.
- Any matter to be decided upon by vote at the AGM shall, unless otherwise expressly
  provided for by law or the rules, be decided upon by simple majority.

### 11 Adjournments

Adjournments of the AGM shall take place only in accordance with section 81(1) and the provisions concerning notice, voting and quorum are also set out in section 81 pf the 1997 Credit Union Act 2012 as Amended.

# **CEO Report**

### For the year ended 30th September 2024

### Dear member

The Financial year 2023-2024 was again a challenging year for your credit union. The Macro Environment continues to be a challenge and continues to pose some risks to the Credit Union. As highlighted in the accounts the cost of IT has surged. This primarily driven from the substantial increase on Cyber Attacks. We take this very seriously and I'm proud to say we were one of the first credit unions to install the use of Artificial Intelligence to ensure the safety of all member data and mitigate the risk of any potential loss.

The year ahead will also have its challenges. Climate Change is now on everyone's agenda and there is an expectation on credit unions to be leaders within the communities. We have updated our Strategic Plan to include Climate Change and procedures to reduce our Carbon Footprint. We will be asking members to sign up for E-Statements and E-AGM Booklets. The New Legislation now allows us to reduce our printing of AGM booklets and to publish on our website. This will vastly reduce the amount of paper we use and with our On-Line access members can download statements at any time, again reducing the amount of paper required and often just shredded or burnt. We would ask you the members to support us on this transformation

In line with our ESG (Environmental, Social & Economic) Policy we will be putting a motion to the floor for the Establishment of a "Community Social Fund". If approved this would allow for us to put some funds back into the community in various projects. Its important to note there would be strict Governance requirements on this, however we feel the communities we serve would benefit from the introduction of such a fund.

It's important to note Templemore Credit Union is a resilient and a financially strong credit union. This year we have seen a 8% growth in our loan book when compared to a 6% in 2023 and a 3% in 2022. In spite of these challenges, we have continued to generate a surplus while strengthening our overall reserves which now stand at 24%, well above the Regulatory requirement of 10%.

But we're not done yet. We strongly believe there is a lot more scope for growth with your help. When we look at our membership we see the increase, but many of whom don't borrow from us despite having some of the lowest rates on the market.

In particular we offer a "Loan within Savings". This loan product allows members to leave their savings and borrow up to the value of their savings at a reduced rate of 6%. The plus side is your savings remain in place and the amount of interest is greatly reduced giving a very cost-effective loan. An example of this is as below

Loan amount	Weekly Payment	Term of Loan	Total Interest Paid
€5,000	€34.00	3 years	€471

Again, we ask you to consider us for any personal loans, for any purpose. We would be delighted to chat on any offerings we have or may introduce. Maybe a family member, a friend who hasn't used our services. We guarantee a fast, Friendly and professional service.

At this point I think it's important to highlight Credit Unions have now won the CXI Awards (Best Customer Experience) for a record 10 years in a row. This is an unprecedented level of success, unmatched anywhere else worldwide. Credit unions were ranked as the most highly regarded organisation in Ireland, in the Ireland RepTrak® 2024 annual study. This is an important acknowledgment of the trust that members of the public, not just credit union members, place in the credit union and the value placed on credit unions' friendly people focused approach.

This is down to the work of the Management Team, staff, Board of Directors and Board Oversight Committee, but more importantly you the members. While we are classed as a small to medium size credit union in the eyes of the Central Bank, we offer a service which is honest, transparent and values you, our members. This trust from you has allowed us to achieve this year's growth. Our mission is to continue to serve you in this manner and we ask for your continued support.

### **Financial Highlights**

#### Income

- · Income up on the previous year
- With our Loan Book dropping to €5.3million during COVID we have increased this to just over €6.3 million as of the 30th September 2024

# **CEO Report (continued)**

### For the year ended 30th September 2024

- During the year our Reserves have increased to 24%, putting us in the Top 3 credit unions under €40 million in assets
- Investment Income has increased due to some increased movement in the Market and some good strategic decisions
- Bad debt recovery was strong through the work of our Management Team, Credit control function and our Legal Team

### **Expenditure**

- · Management expenses have generally been maintained at last year's levels
- · Insurance costs have increased in line with inflation and remain outside of our control
- · Regulatory Levies have increased and again are outside of our control
- IT has increased and is mainly due to Risk mitigation in light of the increased Cyber-attacks, the protection of the credit union and your data is paramount.

### Operations

- Members can now apply online for loans with Digital Signature's. No need to call to the office and can be done from the comfort of your home
- Increased support to organisations in the community this year
- Launch of the Deep Retrofit loan and an all-inclusive package
- Increased our lending limit to €75,000
- Introduced a number of new loan products with over 95% approval rates on applications received
- Arrears now at the lowest Level recorded at 0.88%

### The Future

For the coming year we will be focusing on Climate Change as I previously alluded too. As a local business we believe we need to promote Climate Change and in turn support you our members in any works you may require on your homes or indeed the purchasing of Electric or Hybrid cars. Again, we offer a special rate which is now cheaper that many of the leasing options on the market we you owning your car from the very day of purchase. We will continue to look at how we deliver our services and promote the use of technology. We understand this is not for everyone and we will continue to deliver these services through our traditional methods.

New Legislation was debated and transposed into law this year with the final stage introduced in September. This will allow for an opportunity to allow the sharing of loans, in particular larger loans between neighbouring credit unions.

Ultimately, the success of our credit union does not lie with the Board or staff. It is members who decide our future. By using our services, by borrowing from us, members are ensuring Templemore Credit Union will be here for the future as an independent entity.

Finally, I would like to pay tribute to the Team here in TCU,

- Geraldine Ingram (Management Team & Accounts)
- Eileen O Boyle (Member Services and Loans Officer)
- Martina Carey (Credit Control and Member Services Officer)
- Elaine Luby (Member Services and Loans Officer)
- Stephanie Kavanagh (Member Services and Loans Officer)
- Sabrina Peyton (Compliance & Risk Officer)

The above Team is focused on providing a professional service to you our members at all times. I would also like to thank the Board of Directors and the Board Oversight Committee for their continued support and dedication to the credit union.

Michael Fogarty

**CEO** 

# **Directors Report**

For the year ended 30th September 2024

I am delighted to present the Board of Directors Report for Templemore Credit Union for the year ended 30th September 2024.

Templemore Credit Union is a not-for-profit financial cooperative with a Volunteer Board and Oversight Committee and professional staff. The healthy state of your Credit Union is thanks entirely to the efforts of these individuals and I want to compliment them and thank them for their efforts on your behalf.

Templemore Credit Union has had an excellent year as the credit union continues to grow. Reserves are increasing and now stand at 24%. This is 14% above the Regulatory requirements. Your credit union is certainly strong, safe and secure. We are also happy to report an excess of €294,791 for the year. This is a strong recovery year on year as we move from the hard years of COVID 19

However, we would like to take this opportunity to ask you our members for your continued support. We need your support now more than ever. Templemore credit union will only continue with the support of the community and the continuation of thending. Where lending reduces it will put added pressure on the income stream and the long-term viability of the credit union.

So again, please spread the word and encourage members of the community who may not use the credit union to maybe consider us for any borrowing requirements they may have.

As can be seen from the balance sheet out total assets are in excess of €23 million, an increase of 800k on last year and with a loan book portfolio of €6.3 million also an increase on the previous year.

The board and management have refocused our efforts on lending to members, as this forms the most significant part of our income to cover our expense account. We are continuing to explore new innovative product loans for our members such as a "Green Loan"- retrofit for energy installation in homes. This is our lowest rate and will be an extremely competitive rate for members of the community who plan to undertake

a deep retrofit. We also cater for farming loans under our "cultivate loan package". We are continuously reaching out to all sectors (within guidelines) to provide financial loans

Members may not be aware We now have a full-on line loan application with digital signatures meaning members can now apply on line form the comfort of their homes and now through their phones via the mobile app. Both the Board and the Management have developed a strong Strategic Plan which has stress tested projections in place for the coming 5 years.

Again, to reiterate We need the support of the people in our community and surrounding parishes to call on Templemore Credit Union when considering taking out a loan. This is vital for our survival.

Finally, to finish I wish to thank my fellow Directors, Our Board Oversight Committee and volunteers for their commitment to the Credit Union.

A special thanks to our CEO, his management Team and all his staff for their excellent work and commitment throughout the year. Their dedication and professionalism have ensured the strong performance of your credit union.

To you, our members, thank you for your continued support and loyalty and together Templemore Credit Union will continue to satisfy our member's financial requirements, be financially sound and to continue to grow and prosper. Finally, to wish you all a Happy Christmas and a Happy New year

Patrick McDermott

Patrick McDermott Chairperson

# Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

For the year ended 30 September 2024

The Credit Union Act, 1997 (as amended) require directors to prepare the financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Credit Union and of the income and expenditure of the Credit Union for that period. In preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to:

- \* select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;
- \* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
- \* prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Credit Union will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Credit Union and which enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Credit Union Act, 1997 (as amended). They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Credit Union and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Member of Board of Directors

Date: 29th October 2024

# Statement of Board Oversight Committee's Responsibilities

The Credit Union Act, 1997 (as amended) requires the appointment of a Board Oversight Committee to assess whether the board of directors has operated in accordance with Part IV, Part IV(a) and any regulations made for the purposes of Part IV or Part IV(a) of the Credit Union Act, 1997 (as amended) and any other matter prescribed by the Central Bank in respect of which they are to have regard to in relation to the board.

Member of Board Oversight Committee

Date: 29th October 2024

(in Koa )

# **Independent Auditors' Report**

to the Members of Templemore Credit Union Limited

**Opinion** 

We have audited the financial statements of Templemore Credit Union Limited (the 'Credit Union') for the year ended 30 September 2024 which comprise Income and Expenditure Account, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Cashflows, Statement of Changes in Retained Earnings and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland which is issued by the Financial Reporting Council and promulgated by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland in respect of its application in the Republic of Ireland.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the Credit Union as at 30 September 2024 and of its surplus for the year then ended;
- have been properly prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland; and
- have been properly prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Credit Union Act, 1997 (as amended).

**Basis for Opinion** 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (ISAs (Ireland)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Credit Union in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Ireland, including the Ethical Standard as issued by the Irish Auditing and Accounting Service Authority ("IAASA"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

### Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial statements and our Auditor's Report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

# **Independent Auditors' Report (continued)**

to the Members of Templemore Credit Union Limited

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Credit Union Act, 1997 (as amended). In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit;
- That proper accounting records have been kept by the Credit Union; and
- That the Credit Union's annual accounts are in agreement with its accounting records.

### **Responsibilities of Directors**

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Credit Union's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

# Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the IAASA website at:

http://www.iaasa.ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8f-a98202dc9c3a/Description\_of\_auditors\_responsibilities\_for\_audit.pdf

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Credit Union's members as a body in accordance with Section 120 of the Credit Union Act, 1997 (as amended). Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Credit Union's members those matters that we are required to state to them in the audit report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Credit Union or the Credit Union's members as a body for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

William Homagnes

William Lomasney

Co. Tipperary.

For and on behalf of McKeogh Gallagher Ryan, Chartered Accountants & Statutory Audit Firm, 23 Silver Street, Nenagh,

Date: 29th October 2024

# Income and Expenditure Account for the year ended 30 September 2024

		2024 €	2023
INCOME		· ·	· ·
Interest on Members' Loans		618,294	589,986
Investment Income	Schedule 1	268,294	116,504
NET INTEREST INCOME		886,588	706,490
Other income	Schedule 2	4,219	4,677
TOTAL INCOME		890,807	711,167
EXPENDITURE			
Salary and Wages Costs		(282,002)	(264,676)
Other Management Expenses	Schedule 3	(483,165)	(416,196)
Depreciation		(32,391)	(37,498)
Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts		123,588	54,945
Bad Debts Recovered		77,954	98,997
TOTAL EXPENDITURE		(596,016)	(564,428)
Operating Excess of Income over			
Expenditure before exceptional items		294,791	146,739
Excess of Income over Expenditure in the year	ar	294,791	146,739

There are no recognised gain or losses other than those dealt with in the Income & Expenditure Account. The excess income arose solely from continuing operations.

Signed on behalf of Templemore Credit Union Limited

C.E.O.

Member of Board Oversight Committee

Member of Board of Directors

Date: 29th October 2024

Michael Gozacty

Lendkento

# **Balance Sheet**

as at 30 September 2024

	Notes	2024 €	2023 €
ASSETS			
Cash at Bank and in Hand		1,345,603	1,675,443
Deposits & Investments - Cash Equivalents	3	3,480,632	2,935,966
Deposits & Investments - Other	3	11,245,035	11,189,153
Loans to Members	4	6,353,373	5,882,892
Provision for Doubtful loans	5	(232,381)	(355,969)
Tangible Fixed Assets	6	882,298	906,954
Debtors, Prepayments & Accrued Income	7	107,224	82,231
TOTAL ASSETS		23,181,784	22,316,670
LIABILITIES			
Members Shares	8	17,637,775	17,078,873
Other Liabilities, Accruals & Charges	9	86,934	75,513
		17,724,709	17,154,386
RESERVES			
Regulatory Reserve		2,844,335	2,844,335
Operational Risk Reserve		203,000	203,000
TOTAL REGULATORY RESERVES		3,047,335	3,047,335
Reserve for Unrealised Gains		9,427	9,427
Realised Reserves		2,400,313	2,105,522
TOTAL RESERVES		5,457,075	5,162,284
TOTAL LIABILITIES		23,181,784	22,316,670

Signed on behalf of Templemore Credit Union Limited

C.E.O.

Michael Hospity

Member of Board Oversight Committee

Member of Board of Directors

Date: 29th October 2024

# **Statement of Changes in Retained Earnings**

2024	2023
€	€
2,105,522	1,958,783
294,791	146,739
-	-
-	-
2,400,313	2,105,522
	€ 2,105,522 294,791 - -

As at 30 September 2024			2,4	100,313	2,105,522
MOVEMENT IN RESERVE	S				
	Retained Earnings - Realised	Retained Earnings - Unrealised	Regulatory Reserves Reserve	Operational Risk	Total
As at 1 October 2023 Surplus for the year Dividend / Interest rebate Transfer to Regulatory Reser Transfer to Unrealised Reser		9,427 - - - -	2,844,335 - - - -	203,000	5,162,284 294,791 - -
As at 30 September 2024	2,400,313	9,427	2,844,335	203,000	5,457,075
As a % of total assets	10.4%	0.0%	12.3%	0.9%	23.5%
MOVEMENT IN RESERVE	S				
	Retained Earnings - Realised	Retained Earnings - Unrealised	Regulatory Reserves Reserve	Operational Risk	Total
As at 1 October 2022 Surplus for the year Transfer to Unrealised Reserves	1,958,783 146,739	9,427	2,844,335 - -	203,000	5,015,545 146,739
As at 30 September 2023	2,105,522	9,427	2,844,335	203,000	5,162,284
As a % of total assets	9.4%	0.0%	12.7%	0.9%	23.1%

# **Cash Flow Statement**

for the year ended 30 September 2024

Notes  Cash flows from operating activities	2024 €	2023 €
Surplus Adjustment for non-cash items:	294,791	146,739
Depreciation Bad debt provision & write off Amortisation of investments	32,391 (107,102) (27,237)	37,498 (20,260) (11,932)
Movements in:	192,843	152,045
Accrued interest Change in other receivables Change in other payables	(24,004) (990) 11,422	(40,510) 52,851 (3,960)
	179,271	160,426
Cash flows changes in operating assets and liabilities Cash inflow from members shares Cash outflow from repaid members shares New Loans to members Repayment of loans by members Dividend & Loan Interest Rebate paid	8,768,239 (8,209,336) (2,898,182) 2,411,215 	9,319,537 (9,094,660) (2,730,479) 2,354,891 
Net cash flows from operating activities	251,207	9,715
Cash flows from investing activities Purchase of tangible fixed assets Proceeds from investments Net cash flow from managing deposits	(7,735) 3,325,605 (3,354,251) (36,381)	(16,507) 3,038,631 (2,608,160) 413,964
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 12	<b>214,826</b> 4,611,409	<b>423,679</b> 4,187,730
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 12	4,826,235	4,611,409

# **Notes to the Accounts**

for the year ended 30 September 2024

# 1. Accounting Policies

1.1. Legal and regulatory framework

Templemore Credit Union Limited is established under the Credit Union Act, 1997 (as amended). Templemore Credit Union Limited is registered with the Registrar of Credit Unions and is regulated by the Central Bank of Ireland. The registered office of the credit union is located at Bank Street, Templemore, Co. Tipperary.

1.2. Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102, the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland. The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis.

The currency used in the financial statements is the Euro €.

1.3. Going concern

The directors of Templemore Credit Union Limited believe that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis.

### 1.4. Taxation

Under current legislation registered Credit Unions are exempt from taxation on surpluses.

### 1.5. Income recognition

**Members Loans** 

Interest on Members' Loans is recognised on an accruals basis using the effective interest method.

### Fees and commissions receivable:

Fees and charges either arise in connection with a specific transaction, or accrue evenly over the year. Income relating to individual transactions is recognised when the transaction is completed.

#### Other income:

Other income is recognised on an accruals basis.

#### Investment income:

Deposit and investment income is recognised on an accruals basis using the effective interest method.

### 1.6. Investments

Investment Income is accounted for depending on how the investments are designated at the outset and based on certain criteria. The credit union uses the following accounting methods:

Held at amortised cost less impairment

Investments designated on initial recognition as held at amortised cost are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less impairment. This means that the investment is measured at the amount paid for the investment, minus any repayments of the principal plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between the amount at initial recognition and the maturity amount; minus, in the case of a financial asset, any reduction for impairment or uncollectability. This effectively spreads out the return on such investments over time. Where the directors believe that an investment is impaired this will be recognised immediately in the income and expenditure account.

#### Investments at fair value

Investments held for trading, investment in stock market shares and certain investments which do not meet the criteria of basic financial instruments under FRS 102 are included in this category. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for

for the year ended 30 September 2024

sale in the short term. They are valued at fair value (market value) at the year-end date and all gains and losses are taken to the income and expenditure account.

The fair value of quoted investments is determined by reference to prices at the close of business on the balance sheet date. Where there is no active market, or where the investments are not quoted, the value of the assets will be determined by the directors.

**Central Bank Deposits** 

Credit Unions are obliged to maintain certain deposits with the Central Bank. These deposits are technically assets of the credit union although the credit union has restricted access. The funds attract nominal interest and will not ordinarily be returned to the credit union while it is a going concern. In accordance with the direction of the Central Bank the amounts are shown as current assets and are not subject to impairment reviews.

1.7. Tangible Fixed Assets and Depreciation

Tangible fixed assets comprises items of property, fixture, fittings and equipment, which are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Deprecation is provided to write off the cost of each item of property, fixture, fittings and equipment, less its estimated residual value, on a straight line basis over its estimated useful life. The categories of property, fixture, fittings and equipment are depreciated as follows:

Freehold Site Not depreciated

Freehold Premises 50 years

Furniture and Equipment 8/10 years

Computers 4 years

The carrying values of tangible fixed assets are reviewed annually for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying values may not be recoverable.

1.8. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and loans and advances to banks (i.e. cash deposited with banks) with maturity of less than or equal to three months.

1.9. Financial assets - loans and advances to members

Loans to members are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments. Loans are recognised when cash is advanced to members and measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Loans are derecognised when the right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, usually when all amounts outstanding have been repaid by the member.

### 1.10. Bad and Doubtful Debts

Templemore Credit Union Limited assesses, at each balance sheet date, if there is objective evidence that any of its loans to members are impaired. The loans are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. Individually significant loans are assessed on a loan by loan basis. In addition, if, during the course of the year, there is objective evidence that any individual loan is impaired, a specific loss will be recognised.

Any bad debts/impairment losses are recognised in the Income and expenditure account, as the difference between the carrying value of the loan and the net present value of the expected cash flows.

Where in the opinion of the board a debt becomes irrecoverable, the board may approve the transfer of the loans to bad debts. Bad Debts Written Off are included in Other Management Expenses. Where loans are transferred to bad debts, the members remain indebted to Templemore Credit Union Limited. The credit union continues to pursue all reasonable means of recovery. Bad Debts Recovered are included in the Income and Expenditure Account.

for the year ended 30 September 2024

1.11. Financial liabilities members' shares and deposits

Members' shareholdings and deposits in Templemore Credit Union Limited are redeemable and therefore are classified as financial liabilities. They are initially recognised at the amount of cash deposited and subsequently measured at the nominal amount.

1.12. Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans: The amounts charged as expenditure for the defined contribution plan are the contributions payable by the Credit Union for the relevant period.

Other employee benefits: Other short and long term employee benefits, including holiday pay, are recognised as an expense over the period they are earned.

1.13. Pensions Costs

The credit union operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The assets of this scheme are held separately from those of the credit union in independently administered funds. Employer contributions to the scheme are charged to the income and expenditure account in the period to which they relate.

### 1.14. Reserves

### Realised and unrealised reserves

Retained earnings are the accumulated surpluses to date. The retained earnings are subdivided into realised and unrealised. In accordance with the Central Bank guidance note for Credit Unions on Matters Relating to Accounting for Investments and Distribution Policy, Investment income that has been recognised but will not be received within 12 months of the balance sheet date is classified as "unrealised" and is not distributable. The directors have deemed it appropriate the SPS refund receivable is also classified as unrealised and is not distributable. All other income is classified as "realised". A reclassification between unrealised and realised is made as investments come to within 12 months of maturity date.

**Regulatory Reserve** 

The Credit Union Act, 1997 (Regulatory Requirements) Regulations 2016 requires credit unions to establish and maintain a minimum regulatory reserve requirement of at least 10 per cent of the assets of the credit union. This reserve is to be perpetual in nature; freely available to absorb losses; realised financial reserves that are unrestricted and non- distributable.

**Operational Risk Reserve** 

Section 45(5)(a) of the Credit Union Act, 1997 (as amended) requires each credit union to maintain an additional reserve that it has assessed as required for operational risk having regard to the nature, scale and complexity of the credit union. Credit Unions are required to maintain a minimum operational risk reserve having due regard for the sophistication of the business model.

The definition of operational risk is the risk of losses stemming from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from external events. The Central Bank expects that the amount the credit union holds in its operational risk reserve will be based, at a minimum, on the predicted impact of operational risk events that may materially impact on the credit union's business. Accordingly, Templemore Credit Union Limited carries out an assessment on operational risk, on an annual basis, in order to ascertain the appropriate level of the operational risk reserve.

for the year ended 30 September 2024

1.15. Distribution policy

In respect of each financial year, the credit union will allocate surplus funds to the regulatory reserve and other reserves in accordance with the provisions of the Credit Union Act, 1997 (as amended) and regulations issued by the Financial Regulator. The board of directors may also decide to hold reserves in excess of minimum statutory requirements, taking prudent account of the scale and complexity of the credit union's business, its risk profile and prevailing market conditions. The basis for the dividend is the distributable income of the credit union after meeting its reserve requirements. It is the policy of the credit union to maintain the undistributed surplus in a general reserve that may be used in future years for the payment of dividends.

2 Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain accounting estimates. It also requires the Directors to exercise judgement in applying Templemore Credit Union Limited's accounting policies. The areas requiring a higher degree of judgement, or complexity, and areas where assumptions or estimates are most significant to the financial statements are disclosed below:

2.1. Determination of depreciation, useful economic life and residual value of tangible assets

The annual depreciation charge depends primarily on the estimated lives of each type of asset and, in certain circumstances, estimates of residual values. The directors regularly review these useful lives and change them if necessary to reflect current conditions. In determining these useful lives management consider technological change, patterns of consumption, physical condition and expected economic utilisation of the assets. Changes in the useful lives can have a significant impact on the depreciation charge for the financial year. The net book value of tangible fixed assets subject to depreciation at the year-end was €882,298 (2023: €906,954).

2.2. Adoption of going concern basis for financial statements preparation

The directors have prepared projections and cash flows for a period of at least twelve months from the date of the approval of the financial statements which demonstrate that there is no material uncertainty regarding the credit union's ability to meet its liabilities as they fall due, and to continue as a going concern. On this basis the directors consider it appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis. Accordingly, these financial statements do not include any adjustments to the carrying amounts and classification of assets and liabilities that may arise if the credit union was unable to continue as a going concern.

2.3. Operational Risk Reserve

The directors have considered the requirements of the Credit Union Act, 1997 (as amended) and have developed an approach to the calculation of the operational risk reserve. Templemore Credit Union Limited uses the basic indicator approach as set out in the operational risk measurements techniques proposed under Basel II capital adequacy rules for banking institutions in calculating the minimum operational risk reserve. In addition, the credit union has included in its operational risk reserve a Member Personal Current Account Service operational risk reserve, in accordance with Section 49(3) of the Credit Union Act, 1997 (as amended). The operational risk reserve of the credit union at the year-end was €203,000 (2023: €203,000).

2.4. Bad debts/Impairment losses on loans to members

The calculation of the impairment charges by Templemore Credit Union Limited requires the use of estimates and judgements. The banking system utilised by Templemore Credit Union Limited will automatically include a provision against loans if the level of arrears increases beyond a certain level. The credit control officer and credit control committee monitor the performance of loans to members on an ongoing-basis and conduct a quarterly loan book review. Where the credit control function believes there is objective evidence of impairment they will recommend additional provision against these individual loans. Objective evidence of impairment generally includes observable data that one of the following loss events has occurred:

for the year ended 30 September 2024

> significant financial difficulty of the borrower;

> a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal

> the Credit Union, for economic or legal reasons relating to the member's financial difficulty, granting to the member a concession that the Credit Union would not otherwise consider; and

> it has become probable that the member will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

The Board of Directors of Templemore Credit Union Limited, consider it prudent to undertake a collective review of loans in addition to the above "Specific" provision. As part of the collective review of loans, loans with similar risk profiles are grouped together, for example commercial loans, individually significant loans etc. Templemore Credit Union Limited will then apply a % provision against each loan group which is based on observable data indicating that there has been a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial assets, even though the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual loans in the group, such as adverse national or local economic conditions or adverse changes in industry conditions. The level of this provisioning in excessive of the "Specific" provisioning is referred to as Incurred But Not Reported ("IBNR").

Templemore Credit Union Limited typically based the calculation of the provision on gross loans less attached savings. The bad debt provisioning is set out in Note 5. Further information on the credit risk posed by the loans to members is included in Note 10.

### 3. Investments

	2024	2023
	€	€
Bank Bonds	3,776,293	3,767,879
Irish and EEA State Securities	2,835,741	2,725,623
Accounts in authorised credit institutions	8,035,444	10,279,051
Central Bank deposits	78,189	78,189
	14,725,667	16,850,742

### **Bonds (Capital Guaranteed)**

Bonds are stated in the accounts at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less impairment. The directors consider a bond impaired where the market value of the bond is less than the amortised cost at the reporting date. There was no impairment recognised on the bonds as at 30 September 2024.

### Accounts in authorised credit institutions

Accounts in authorised credit institutions include structured products of €2,980,907 (2023: €2,984,229).

### Structured products

Templemore Credit Union Limited hold a number of structured products. The terms and conditions of each structured product are examined to determine the appropriate treatment in the financial statements

### Structured products with bonus element

Some of structured products held by Templemore Credit Union Limited offer 100% capital guarantee at maturity together with a predetermined rate of return over the life of the product and a potential bonus at maturity depending on the performance of an underlying stock market index. The Board of Directors treat such products as two separate investment; (1) a deposit with a predetermined rate of return and (2) an option which offers a potential bonus on maturity.

for the year ended 30 September 2024

In the opinion, of the Board of Directors, the deposit element of the structured product is a basic financial instrument and is measured in the financial statements at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less impairment. The Board deem it appropriate to assign the full cost of such structured product investments solely to the deposit element and no cost has been assigned to the option element.

The Board concluded that the option / "bonus" element of structured products are complex financial instruments and therefore in accordance with FRS 102 should be measured in the financial statements at fair value. There is no market for the option / "bonus" element and it cannot be sold separately from the deposit. It is the considered opinion of the board of directors that the fair value of the option / bonus element is nil.

### Structured products with stepped interest rate

Some of structured products held offer 100% capital guarantee at maturity together with a predetermined variable / stepped rate of return but do not offer a bonus at maturity. The Board of Directors concluded that such products are basic financial instruments and are therefore measured in the financial statements at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less impairment.

It is the opinion of the Board that none of the structured products were impaired as at 30 September 2024.

### 4. Loans and advances to members

	2024	2023
	€	€
As at 1 October	5,882,892	5,541,989
Advanced during the year	2,898,182	2,730,479
Repaid during the year	(2,411,215)	(2,354,891)
Bad debts written off	(16,486)	(34,685)
As at 30 September	6,353,373	5,882,892

### 5. Loan arrears and doubtful debts

	2024	2023
	€	€
Opening provision for bad debts	355,969	410,914
Increase / (decrease) in bad debt provision	(123,588)	(54,945)
Closing provision for bad debts	232,381	355,969

The provision in the financial statements is €232,381 (2023: €355,969) representing 4.55% (2023: 7.73%) of the net loan book.

# Notes to the Accounts continued for the year ended 30 September 2024

# **Tangible fixed assets**

	Premises	Fittings &	Total
	Business	Equipment	
	€	€	€
Cost			
At 1 October 2023	1,599,918	666,620	2,266,538
Additions	<u> </u>	7,735	7,735
At 30 September 2024	1,599,918	674,355	2,274,273
Depreciation/ Impairment			
Impairment B/Forward	567,342	-	567,342
Depreciation at 1 October 2023	164,594	627,648	792,242
Charge for the year	13,264	19,127	32,391
At 30 September 2024	745,200	646,775	1,391,975
Net book Values			
At 30 September 2024	854,718	27,580	882,298
At 30 September 2023	867,982	38,972	906,954

A professional valuation of the freehold premises was completed in October 2024 valuing the property in the amount of €1,150,000. It was considered that no adjustment to the carrying value was deemed necessary at this reporting date.

for the year ended 30 September 2024

7.	Debtors, Prepayments & Accrued Income	2024 €	2023 €
	Loan Interest Income Receivable Net Investment Income Receivable Other Debtors & Prepayments Other Income Receivable	19,510 31,644 46,643	16,204 16,669 39,931
	Other Income Receivable	9,427	9,427 82,231
8.	Members Shares	2024 €	2023 €
	Total Members' Shares	17,637,775	17,078,873
9.	Other Liabilities, Creditors, Accruals and Charges	2024 €	2023 €
	Current Creditors	86,934	75,513
	Total	86,934	75,513 ————

### 10. Credit Risk Disclosures

The Credit Union complies with Section 12-14 of the Credit Union Act, 1997 (Regulatory Requirements) Regulations 2016. This Regulation:

>restricts the concentration of lending by the credit union within certain sectors or to connected persons or groups (concentration limits);

>restricts the absolute amount of lending to certain sectors to a set percentages of the regulatory reserve (large exposure limit)

>restricts the loan duration of certain loans to specified limits (maturity limits) >require specified lending practices to be in place where loans are made to certain sectors such as commercial loans, community loans or loans to another credit union.

Templemore Credit Union Limited may seek security as part of its normal underwriting criteria when advancing loans to members. The security sought may include security over a members shares with the credit union, a guarantor for the loan, a charge against a property, a letter of undertaking etc.

The carrying amount of the loans to members represents Templemore Credit Union Limited's maximum exposure to credit risk. No account has been made for the value of any security held. The following table provides information on the credit quality of loan repayments. Where loans are not impaired/bad it is expected that the amounts repayable will be received in full.

for the year ended 30 September 2024

		2024	2	023
	€	%	€	%
Not impaired / fully recoverable:				
Neither past due nor impaired	6,221,399	97.9%	5,777,839	98.2%
Sub-total: loans not impaired	6,221,399	97.9%	5,777,839	98.2%
Individually impaired/				
not fully recoverable (NFR):				
Not yet past due, but impaired/NFR	-	-%	-	-%
Up to 9 weeks past due	76,354	1.2%	22,725	0.4%
Between 10 and 18 weeks past due	8,780	0.1%	20,980	0.4%
Between 19 and 26 weeks past due	-	-%	-	-%
Between 27 and 39 weeks past due	1,229	0.0%	9,495	0.2%
Between 40 and 52 weeks past due	8,934	0.1%	4,841	0.1%
Over 1 year past due	36,677	0.6%	47,013	0.8%
Sub-total: loans impaired	131,974	2.1%	105,054	1.8%
<b>Total Loans</b>	6,353,372	100.0%	5,882,893	100.0%
Impairment allowance	(232,381)		(355,969)	
Total carrying value	6,120,992		5,526,924	

### 11. Additional financial instruments disclosures

### 11.1 Financial risk management

Templemore Credit Union Limited manages its members' shares and loans to members so that it earns income from the margin between interest receivable and interest payable. The main financial risks arising from Templemore Credit Union Limited's activities are credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

### Credit Risk:

Credit risk is the risk that a borrower will default on their contractual obligations to repay the credit union, resulting in financial loss to the credit union. In order to manage this risk the Board approves its lending policy, and all changes to it. All loan applications are assessed with in accordance with the lending policy in force at the time. Subsequently, loans are regularly reviewed for any factors that may indicate that the likelihood of repayment has changed.

### Liquidity risk:

Templemore Credit Union Limited's policy is to maintain sufficient funds in liquid form at all times to ensure that it can meet its liabilities as they fall due. The objective of the Credit Union's liquidity policy is to smooth the mismatches between maturing assets and liabilities and to provide a reasonable degree of protection against any unexpected developments that may arise.

for the year ended 30 September 2024

### Market risk:

Market risk is generally comprised of interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk. Templemore Credit Union Limited conducts all its transactions in Euro. Templemore Credit Union Limited does not deal in derivatives or commodity markets other than those that are components of deposit based structured products as set out in Note 3. Therefore Templemore Credit Union Limited is exposed to very limited currency risk or other price risk.

### Interest rate risk:

Templemore Credit Union Limited's main interest rate risk arises from differences between the interest rate exposures on the receivables and payables that form an integral part of a credit union's operations. The Credit Union considers rates of interest receivable when deciding on the dividend rate payable on members' shares. Templemore Credit Union Limited does not use interest rate options to hedge its own positions.

The Board monitor and respond to the interest rate risk faced through a number of different methods including but not necessarily limited to: review of monthly financial accounts, with the production of financial projections which take account of the expected future interest rates, establishment of an investment committee and appointment of an investment advisor to determine how to maximise the return on excess funds, by setting the interest rates charged to members on loans and by proposing dividend and loan interest rebate rates to the members.

### 11.2 Interest rate risk disclosures

The following table shows the average interest rates applicable to relevant financial assets and financial liabilities

	30 Septeml €	Average Rate of Interest Earned	30 September €	2023 Average Rate of Interest Earned
Financial Assets Loans to members Deposits and investments	6,353,373	10.1%	5,882,892	10.3%
	14,725,667	1.7%	14,125,119	0.7%

The interest rates applicable to loans to members are set out in Note 20. The above average rate of interest on members' loans is before any loan interest rebate.

for the year ended 30 September 2024

### 11.3 Liquidity Risk Disclosures

All Templemore Credit Union Limited financial liabilities are repayable on demand other than members shares attached to loans or otherwise pledged as security.

The credit union's policy is to maintain sufficient funds in liquid form at all times to ensure that it can meet its liabilities as they fall due. The credit union adheres on an ongoing basis to the minimum liquidity ratio and minimum short term liquidity ratio as set out in regulatory requirements.

### 11.4 Fair value of financial instruments

Templemore Credit Union Limited do not hold any financial instruments at fair value.

### 12. Cash and Cash Equivalents

	2024	2023
	€	€
Cash and balances with the clearing banks	1,345,603	1,675,443
Deposits (See Note 3)	8,113,633	7,631,617
Irish and EEA State Securities (See Note 3)	2,835,741	2,725,623
Bonds (See Note 3)	3,776,293	3,767,879
	16,071,270	15,800,562
Less: amounts maturing after three months	(11,245,035)	(11,189,153)
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents	4,826,235	4,611,409

for the year ended 30 September 2024

### 13. Dividends & Loan Interest Rebate

The following distributions were made during the period:

	202	4	2023	
Gross dividend on	Rate %	€	Rate %	€
members shares	0.00 %	<u>-</u>	0.00 %	
		-		-

The above dividends refer to the dividends paid out in those years from the surplus earned in previous years.

### Proposed dividend and loan interest rebate:

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend on shares or a rebate on interest paid by members on loans throughout the year.

### 14. Key Management Remuneration

The Directors of Templemore Credit Union Limited are all unpaid volunteers. The key management team for Templemore Credit Union Limited would include the Chief Executive Officer, the Credit Controller, Anti-Money Laundering Compliance Officer and the Finance Officer.

	2024 €	2023 €
Short term employee benefits paid to key management Employer PRSI Employer contribution to pension schemes / life cover	170,270 18,577 14,098	162,150 17,926 11,975
Total key management personnel compensation	202,945	192,051

for the year ended 30 September 2024

### 15. Related party transactions

Templemore Credit Union Limited is prohibited from making loans to a related party which would provide that party with more favourable terms than a loan to non-related party (including terms as to credit assessment, duration, interest rates, amortization schedules, collateral requirements etc.).

The Credit Union Act, 1997 (Regulatory Requirements) Regulations 2016 requires the disclosure of the total loans outstanding to either (a) a member of the family of a member of the board of directors or the management team of a credit union; or (b) a business in which a member of the board of directors or the management team of a credit union has a significant shareholding (10%). A family member is defined in the Statutory Instrument as meaning, in relation to any person, that person's father, mother, spouse or civil partner, cohabitant, son, daughter, brother, or sister.

	No. of Loans	2024 €	No. of Loans	2023
	IVO. Of Loans	€	IVO. Of Loans	€
Loans advanced to related				
parties during the year	5	38,550	12	59,395
Total loans outstanding to rela	ted			
parties at the year-end	11	176,786	11	102,686
Total provisions for loans outs	tanding			
to related parties		6,854		4,128
Total provision charge / (revers	sal)			
during the year		2,726		
for loans outstanding to relate	d parties			

Total loans outstanding to related parties represents 2.78% of the total loans outstanding at 30 September 2024.

The total amount of savings held by related parties at the year-end was €247,075 (2023: €241,142).

### 16. Insurance against fraud

The Credit Union has insurance against fraud in the amount of €1,300,000 in compliance with Section 47 of the Credit Union Act, 1997 (as amended).

### 17. Non-Audit Services

Templemore Credit Union Limited engaged our auditors, McKeogh Gallagher Ryan to provide assistance with the financial statements preparation. The fees paid to our auditors for this assistance are included as part of the audit fee.

Additionally, during the year Templemore Credit Union Limited engaged McKeogh Gallagher Ryan to provide professional advices in relation to the preparation of financial projections and other financial related matters.

for the year ended 30 September 2024

### 18. Pensions

The amount recognised in the income and expenditure account in relation to the total pension charge was €26,018 (2023: €15,156).

#### **Defined Contribution Plans / PRSA**

Templemore Credit Union Limited provides access to defined contribution PRSA scheme for its employees whom are not a member of the Irish League of Credit Unions Republic of Ireland Pension Scheme.

The PRSA's are managed by external pension managers and the assets are held independently from the assets of Templemore Credit Union Limited.

Employer contributions to the defined contribution plan are recognised as expenses in the period in which the related service is provided. Contribution of €2,159 were due at year end and these have subsequently been paid.

### 19. Capital commitments

There were no capital commitments at year end.

### 20. Rate of interest charged on members loans

	Per Month	APR
Normal Loans	1%	12.68%
Community Loans	0.5%	6.30%
Cultivate Agri Loans	0.55%	6.75%
Auto Loans	0.7%	8.80%
Secured Loans	0.5%	6.30%
Greener Home Loans A3	0.4%	4.90%
Greener Home Loans B2	0.48%	5.96%
Greener Home Loans below B2	0.64%	7.98%
Greener Loans	0.65%	8.20%

### 21. Post Balance Sheet Events

The Credit Union has no known significant post balance sheet events that require disclosure.

### 22. Contingent Liabilities

The Credit Union has no known contingent liabilities.

### 23. Approval of Accounts

The accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 29th October 2024.

# Schedule to the Accounts for the year ended 30 September 2024

for the year ended 30 September 2024		
	2024	2023
	€	€
Schedule 1 - Other Interest Income and similar Income		
Deposit Interest / Investment Income	190,340	72,062
Investment Income Receivable within 12 months	77,954	44,442
	268,294	116,504
Schedule 2 - Other Income		
Entrance Fees	64	68
Commission	4,149	4,369
Other income	6	240
	4,219	4,677

# Schedule to the Accounts for the year ended 30 September 2024

# **Schedule 3 - Other Management Expenses**

	2024	2023
	€	€
Training Costs	7,075	8,911
Rates & Service Charges	1,512	2,778
General Insurance	15,153	14,841
Share & Loan Insurance (Gross)	44,988	51,833
Computer Maintenance	122,123	90,853
Light, Heat and Cleaning	10,077	15,430
Repairs and Renewals	6,174	5,302
Postage and Telephone	3,604	4,402
Printing & Stationery	5,736	4,534
Promotion & Advertising	15,015	7,575
Donations & Sponsorship	1,900	1,499
Security	9,228	3,403
Regulatory Levy	51,409	33,201
Affiliation Fees	14,748	6,127
Convention Expenses	259	214
AGM Expenses	7,981	6,262
Travel & Subsistence	48	647
Legal and Professional Fees	8,990	3,013
Debt Collection	9,116	13,513
Audit Fee	21,000	20,000
Consultancy Fees	65,725	65,589
Bank Charges	40,537	19,005
Bad Debts Written Off	16,486	34,685
Sundry Expenses	4,281	2,579
	483,165	416,196

# **Report of the Board Oversight Committee**

The function of the Board Oversight Committee is to observe the Board of Directors and to assess whether the Board of Directors has operated in accordance with Part IV, Part IV (a) of the Credit Union Act 1997 to 2012 as amended and any regulations stipulated by the Central Bank.

### The responsibilities of the Board Oversight Committee include:

- Conducting quarterly reviews with the Board of Directors.
- Attendance at various Committee Meetings and ensuring that their records are prepared promptly, accurately and policies which are put in place are followed.
- At least one member of the Board Oversight Committee must attend or observe the monthly Board Meeting.
- Conduct an annual appraisal of the Board of Directors and submit same to the Chairperson
- On submitting our appraisal of the Board, we found the Board of Templemore Credit Union to be compliant under all their functions as prescribed within the Act

The Committee met monthly over the past 12 months and submitted the reports to the Board in line with requirements. We're happy to inform you the Board have complied with requirements in fulfilling their obligations as Directors in line with legislation and no material breaches were identified.

The Board Oversight Committee would like to thank our Chairman Pat and all Directors for their co-operation during the year.

In conclusion, we would like to acknowledge the endless work done by our CEO and his team, ensuring that the members of Templemore Credit Union have and will continue to receive the excellent service and commitment they have been accustomed to. Again, congratulations to all the team and the Board.

And finally, to wish you our members a very happy Christmas and a happy New Year



# **Report of the Credit Committee**

In Line with Legislation and Regulations the Board of Directors must appoint a Credit Committee. The committee mainly act as an Oversight on the Credit Function. From the 1st of October 2024 this committee will change to an operational committee who will adjudicate on Ioan applications. This is in line with the Credit Union Act as amended 2023 and the new MCC (Minimum Competency Requirements) where all Loan Officers must hold a recognised Qualification.

This The Credit Union also have 3 professional staff members appointed as Loans Officers to consider and decide on loan applications in accordance with the Board's Credit Policy. The Credit Policy is revised and updated at least annually with strict underwriting criteria.

In the Financial Year ending 30th September 2024, €2,898,182 were issued and drawn down, bringing the total loans outstanding to €6,353,373 million. This was an 8% increase on the previous year.

Lending is our primary driver of Income and the lifeline of the credit union. We have introduced a range of new Loan rates and would ask you all to please consider us when seeking finance.

There are many factors in deciding whether a loan should be approved or not. The primary factor is based on members repayment capacity. Other factors include past history, employment details, amount and purpose of the loan and the confidence in the integrity of the borrower. In assessing a loan, we are required under the Act to have in place the relevant documents to process the loan. Over the last number of years, the credit union has worked tirelessly to reduce the paperwork and to ensure a fast turnaround of loans.

I'm glad to say we have been successful in this and the vast majority of loans are assessed in within the same day and members notified of the decision.

New loan products such as our Agri Loan and our latest offering of Retrofit loans with rates from 4.9% are now available. All of the above are in line with Market demands and allow us to continue serving you, our members. Templemore now offer a number of different interest rates with the introduction of our New Greener Energy Loan.

12% Personal Loan Rate. 8.5% Auto Loan Rate.

6% Loan where savings are greater than the loan balance

6.55% Cultivate Loan Rate. 4.9% - 7.9% Greener Energy Loan

Templemore credit union has over 50 years' experience in Personal lending and we ask members who may not have borrowings with us to please consider us when thinking of borrowing. As other lenders have left the community your credit union remains to assist the community in professional and affordable lending. We introduced a full On-Line loan application system. Members can now apply on line from the comfort of their own home and when approved have their funds transferred to their bank account. This can be done via our website or indeed our very own Loan App.

Our rates are very competitive with additional bonuses such as free loan protection insurance. (Some terms & conditions apply).

In conclusion, we thank you the members, for your support during the year. We express our sincere gratitude to the Board of Directors, Our CEO, Management and Staff for their cooperation and assistance.

Credit Committee

# **Report of the Credit Control Committee**

The Board of Directors appoint the Credit Control committee annually to monitor impaired accounts. Impaired accounts are those which are in breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments.

In supporting the committee Templemore credit union have a fulltime credit control officer who manages arrears and collections on a daily basis. Regular meetings are held between the committee and the credit control officer and following these meetings reports are furnished to both the Manager and the Board of Directors.

As with any credit there is always a credit risk. This relates to default by members for any number of reasons. With this in mind the committee would remind members if you find yourself in financial difficulty with loan repayments, it is vitally important you contact the office.

Members in arrears are required to be reported to the CCR as a matter of Legislation and may affect their ability to secure lending within any institution. Again, the importance of communicating with the office is essential.

letters are sent in the first instance to members not paying as agreed. Failure to respond to such letters leads to contact by phone or home visits. When all avenues open to the committee fail, we then have no choice but to hand the accounts to our Legal advisors for collection through open courts. We do not take this step lightly but we also have a duty to the membership in general to recover these loans.

Members must note where lending is involved there will always be a credit Risk. Templemore Credit Union monitor this Risk and have strengthened the underwriting criteria in loan applications to reduce this Risk further. We are happy to report over the last number of years we have seen the number of Discharged loans reduce. New requirements from the Central Bank may result in distressed account being discharged from the live loan book. This will be monitored by the Board on a monthly basis.

It is the Policy of Templemore credit union to pursue Discharged loan accounts through reminders and litigation including the seeking of Instalment Orders. Through the use of our solicitors TCU have again this year had a high collection rate on Bad Debt Accounts. The Board and Management will continue to make this a priority for the coming year. The Management and our Credit control Officer remain open to any member contacting them to discuss their loans which may be in arrears or indeed discharged prior to any upcoming litigation action against them.

Again, we stress the importance and we encourage any member having difficulty with loan repayments to contact the credit union urgently. Please don't ignore the problem. The earlier we become aware the easier it is to resolve.

Our credit Control team are all Qualified Professional People and your confidentiality is assured.

We would like to thank our Credit Control Officer for her work in this area and we congratulate you the borrowers who have honoured your commitments.

We would like to take this opportunity to wish you all a Happy Christmas and a Happy New Year.

Credit Contol Committee

# **Report of the Membership Committee**

The Board of Directors appoints a Membership Committee annually to approve membership applications in accordance with Section 5 Rules 10 to 22 of the Standard Rules for Credit Unions, registered under the Credit Union Act 1997 (as amended). Applicants seeking membership of the credit union must be resident or employed in the common bond of the credit union.

In the year ended 30th September 2024 Templemore Credit Union accepted 109 new members. 81 Adults and 28 Juvenile members. A Positive increase on the previous year.

Credit Unions are required by the Criminal Justice and Terrorist Financing Act 2010 to:

- Take all reasonable measures to confirm the identity of all account holders.
- Ensure that all accounts held with the credit union are not used for the purpose of money laundering, if necessary, the Garda financial Investigation Unit and Revenue Commissioners will be notified if money laundering is suspected.
- Maintain a record of all large lodgements to account or large sums of money lodged over a period of time.

In order to comply with the Act persons seeking membership are obliged to provide:

- Evidence of identification passport or driving licence and Evidence of residence together with evidence of PPS number
- Date of Birth
- Permission to take photograph to retain on file for security reasons.
- When a member is re-activating their account, which has been inactive for over 3 years then the above information will also be required.

Templemore Credit Union will continue to conduct Customer Due Diligence on all members in the coming 12 months. Members will be asked for up to date ID and address verification and to provide a copy of their PPS number during the year.

We would like to take this opportunity to also remind member who are using our on-line banking to update their ID. The co-operation of our members is greatly appreciated in ensuring that Templemore Credit Union operates within the guidelines as laid down by the Criminal Justice Act and the credit union's policies.

Please note we are not allowed to use the Public Services card under current legislation to verify any of the above. We would like to take this opportunity to thank our members and to continue welcoming new members.

Membership Committee

# **Report of the Nomination Committee**

The Nomination Committee is a Board appointed Committee as per Section 56B of the Credit Union Act. The principal role of the Committee is to identify and accept nominations for appointment to the Board of Directors. All Directors are members of Templemore Credit Union who reside or work in, or who have a connection to our Common Bond.

Candidates wishing to be appointed as a member of the Board must be proposed through the Committee, as nominations from the floor are no longer permitted.

If any member of Templemore Credit Union may be interested in becoming a member of the Board or the Board Oversight Committee, we encourage you to contact the Credit Union for more information.

By Volunteering your time, it ensures the viability of the credit union as we need a Board of Directors for Governance requirements. Maybe you might Know a friend who may consider the position?

Whilst the proposal of candidates comes from this Committee, the election of any such candidate will be by secret ballot at an AGM. The Committee must ensure that any prospective candidate has undergone "fitness and probity" requirements prior to being appointed to the Board of Directors.

The Nomination Committee are responsible for ensuring that there is an appropriate Succession Plan in place for the Board. The role and primary objective of the Nomination Committee is to ensure that candidates for vacancies on the Board of Directors are suitable in terms of skills, experience and / or qualifications such to ensure the balance of the Board is optimised. A secondary objective is to ensure that once they have been duly elected, Directors will receive appropriate induction and are adequately trained.

The Committee regularly review the composition of the Board to ensure TCU retains excellent governance, with Directors who have the highest standards and skills to fulfil their roles.

This standard ensures all Board members are capable, competent and financially sound whilst having the appropriate skills, experience and integrity to govern Templemore Credit Union.

We wish to acknowledge the continued commitment from the Chairperson, members of the Board and members of the Board Oversight Committee. We look forward to the challenges that 2025 will bring and finally we thank all our members for supporting Templemore Credit Union.

Nomination Committee 2024



# **Important Member Information**

# **Identification Requirements**

In line with AML and CRS requirement's we ask members to ensure their ID is up to date. Members may be required to produce up to date photographic ID, Proof of Address, PPS number and verification of same.

Members who Transact on-line must also ensure their ID is up to date. If in doubt please contact a member of Staff where all assistance will be provided.

Photographic ID:	Proof of address:	Proof of PPS:
Passport Driving Licence	Recent Utility Bill Letter from Revenue Bank Statement	Medical card E1 Travel Card Doctors Visitation Card Correspondence from Revenue





# **Update on Member Services**

### **Life Savings**

Please note TCU presently have Life Savings cover in place under the LS 2024 scheme. This scheme is subject to Terms and Conditions. The cost of this Insurance is covered by Templemore credit union and Templemore credit union retain ownership of this policy.

### **Loan Protection Insurance**

Loan Protection Insurance is in place for Qualifying members who may have a current loan with Templemore credit union. Again, this product is paid for by Templemore credit union as an operational expense and Templemore credit union will remain title holders for this policy. There are no changes to this product currently.

### **Death Benefit Insurance**

Death Benefit Insurance is available as a member paid product. The ILCU provide members with a product which is a Guaranteed Whole of Life Protection Plan. This product may be suitable for members who wish to provide a lump sum on their death to help cover the costs of funeral expenses. If interested please contact the credit union and we will provide you with the details of how to get this product.





# ONLINE BANKING

templemorecu.ie

# **APPLY FOR A LOAN ONLINE**

Discover the advantage of a fair and affordable loan. Credit Unions are low-cost High value!

# **MOBILE BANKING ON-THE-GO**

When life gets very busy, there's no time for standing in a queue.

Transfer Money In and Out
Pay a Bill / Credit Card
Check your account balances
Get your PIN via SMS







# LOANS WITHIN SAVINGS

Why use your savings when you can borrow at a market low rate of 6% with no paperwork required. **Contact us today to find out more!** 













To download our mobile app, scan the QR code or search for 'Templemore Credit Union' in the App Store or Google Play Store.

If you do not meet the repayments on your loan, your account will go into arrears. This may affect your credit rating which may limit your ability to access credit in the future. Templemore Credit Union Limited is regulated by the Central Bank of Ireland.

Go mobile Today. Manage your money 'On-The-Go'





- Immediate approval guaranteed
  - Supporting local community
- Free Loan Insurance (subject to T&C's)
  - Personal friendly service <
  - Advanced payments accepted with no cost (reducing your interest)
    - Tailored repayments available



# Loan with savings example

New Loan Sought - 6%	€10,000.00
Repayments Instalments	€193.33 monthly
Repayment Type	Swift (Inclusive of Interest)
Term of Repayments	260 months
Total Amount Repayable*	€11,575.17
Cost of Loan	€1,575.17
APR	6.18%

Please contact the office for further information.



info@templemorecu.ie 🔌 0504 31603 🌐 www.templemorecu.ie







limit your ability to access credit in the future. Templemore Credit Union Limited is regulated by the Central Bank of Ireland.



As the last remaining **Financial Institution** in the community please note we are lending. Please support you local Credit Union.

# **Did you Know?**

- We have full On line Facilities and our very own Mobile App.
- Support your local credit union.
- Winners of Best Customer Service for 7 years in a row







www.templemorecu.ie